
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

 
Agenda 

 
The November 2014 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District 
will be held on Thursday, November 20, 2014 at 6:00 pm at the Horseheads Free Library 
405 S. Main St.  Horseheads, NY  14845.   The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you 
are unable to attend, please inform Mr. Roberts (271-9625), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. 
Shaw (733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2014-61)   
4.  Treasurer’s report  
 a)  Financial report (document #2014-62) 
 b)  Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2014-63) 
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report 
8.  Director’s Report:  
 Appendix A- Office of the Director 
 Appendix B- CCLD Staff report for November   
9.  Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Roberts)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-64) 
CONSENT ITEM  Approval of the Executive Committee Charter (Attached) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Cook) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-65) 
c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document #2014-66) 
CONSENT ITEM  Approval of the Buildings & Grounds Committee Charter 

(Attached) 
CONSENT ITEM Award of Contract for SML Elevator Project Manager 
d) Personnel Committee (Cady)  
CONSENT ITEM Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C) 

10.  Old business  
11.  New business   
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  
 
 

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/�


                 BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE CHARTER 
     CCLD 
 
Article I.  Charge to the Committee 
 
The Building and Grounds Committee is hereby created and charged by the Board 
of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District to oversee the maintenance 
and care for the buildings and grounds of the CCLD. 
 
Article II.  Term 
 
This Charter is effective from the date approved by the Board and is subject to 
amendment or revocation by the Board. 
 
Article III. Chair 
 
There shall be a Chair, appointed by the President of the Board of Trustees of the 
CCLD from among its members.  Vice-Chairs may be appointed by the Chair from 
among the members of the Committee. 
 
Article IV. Membership 
 
Number:  There shall be at least three members of the Committee. 
 
Appointments: Members of the Committee will be appointed by the President of 
the Board of Trustees. 
 
Removal: Failure to attend meetings without excuse may because for removal. 
 
Resignation: Members may resign at any time by communicating such resignation 
to the Chair and the Board President. 
 
Article V. Powers 
 
Scope of Powers:  The Committee shall have no power to spend money or commit 
the District to any course of action.  The Committee shall be subject to all policies 
and regulations of the District and to applicable law.  The Committee may make 



recommendations to the Board of Trustees or the President as appropriate, to 
take action for the benefit of the District. 
 
Meetings:  Meetings of the Committee shall be scheduled, posted and conducted 
as required by the Open Meetings  Law.  Chairs should consult with District 
administration for advice and assistance. 
 
Decisions:  The Committee should, in the first instance, attempt to make decisions 
by consensus.  If concensus cannot be reached, the Committee can make 
decisions by majority vote.  No decision or recommendation shall be recognized 
as an act of the Committee without agreement of a majority of the membership. 
 
Information:  The Committee may request of the District administration any 
information the Committee believes is necessary to conduct its work. 
 
Article VI. Responsibilities 
 
Solicit, review and recommend to the Board of Trustees bids for capital 
improvement projects. 
 
Review and monitor expenses for capital improvement projects 
 
Review and monitor expenses for the general care, maintenance and operation of 
the buildings and grounds of the CCLD. 
 
Coordinate with staff, architects, project managers to facilitate work on projects 
related to the maintenance and care of the buildings and grounds of the CCLD. 
 
Develop a long range plan for capital improvements.     
 
The Committee will meet monthly, or as needed to fulfill its’ charge. 
 
The Committee will keep the Board of Trustees of the CCLD informed about 
ongoing projects and plans for capital improvements. 



(Minutes of the OCTOBER 2014 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of Trustees.  
Document #2014-61) 
 
The meeting was held on Thursday, October 16th, 2014 at the headquarters of the Southern Tier Library 
System, 9424 Scott Road, Painted Post, New York. President Richard Roberts called the meeting to order 
at 6:00pm. Present were Ann Hayes, Georgia Reynolds, Bonnie Chollet, Sue Cook, Marge Kappanadze, 
Ann Cady, Rachel Dworkin and Jim Hare. Excused: Michael Muldoon, Juan Jones, Tim Blandford and 
Jessica Roberts. 
 
CONSENT ITEM: Following the pledge of allegiance, Mr. Hare moved, seconded by Ms. Kappanadze to 
appoint Pat Silvernail to serve as trustee of District #1 for the remainder of the year. VOTE: Unanimously 
approved. Ms. Silvernail then joined the board to participate in the meeting.  
 
The meeting was then turned over to Brian Hildreth, Executive Director of the Southern Tier Library 
System (STLS). He spoke about the relationship between the Library System and member libraries 
including the Central Library (Steele). He highlighted the partnership between STLS and CCLD including 
the spring Continuing Ed workshop that included 30 member libraries in attendance and Freegal, which 
was purchased through a consortium and saved CCLD approximately $5-6,000. He stated that STLS is 
here to serve all libraries, but especially CCLD as the Central Library. Mr. Hildreth explained that STLS 
gets its funding 78% from New York State and 21% from member libraries.  He and the Director 
Advisory Council are continuing to work on an agreement for all member libraries to have the same 
policies.  He also informed the board that Cost Share will increase by 5% in 2015.  This covers the many 
services provided to member libraries by STLS.   
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the September 2014 meeting (Document #2014-55) were presented for board 
review.  The minutes were approved as distributed by unanimous consent.   
 
Financial  Report. The September 30th, 2014 Financial Report (Document #2014-56) was presented for 
board review. By unanimous consent, the September Financial Report was approved as distributed and 
will be filed for audit. 
 
Report of Unpaid Bills. (Document #2014-57). By unanimous consent, the board authorizes the payment 
of the unpaid bills dated 10/1/14 General Fund – 72,618.69; the unpaid bills dated 10/8/14 General Fund - 
$14,373.80 as distributed.  Ms. Santulli stated that one additional invoice in the amount of $150 needs to 
be approved for James Turner, the programmer for the Spooky Stacks event. Ms. Reynolds moved, 
seconded by Ms. Chollet to approve the extra invoice for payment.  VOTE:  Unanimously approved.  
 
Correspondence. Mr. Shaw reported the receipt of a notification from Capabilities listing an increase in 
their cleaning contract with CCLD due to the increase in minimum wages.  A $500 donation was received 
from Dr. Wang and thank you notices were received from Glove House and Family Reading Partnership. 
 
Director’s Report.   The Director’s report was submitted in writing to the board. Mr. Shaw also reported 
on the following: 

• CCLD Issues. Regarding the budget vote, he has spoken to Matt Hicks of the Morning Times, sent 
an article to the Star Gazette and submitted the legal notice for the election to the paper. On 
December 4th from 10am-11am, the New York State Library and the Library Trustees Association 
of NY will offer a webinar entitled “Public Library Finance and the Trustee’s Fiduciary 
Responsibilities”. Board members are encouraged to view the webinar. 

• Grant Applications. Completed grant applications include the 3D Systems Makers Lab Club for 
which CCLD has requested to receive two new 3D printers; a grant in the amount of $3,250 from 
the Community Foundations Cusick Family fund and a grant request to the Corning Foundation 
for Maker Space equipment purchases.  Mr. Shaw is working on submitting an application for a 



Gannett grant in the amount of $5,000 and a Community Arts grant that may fund the CCLD 
Maker Faire in 2015.  He is following up on the NYSERDA grant for the Energy Audit. 

• Programs. The Library District has collaborated with the Community Foundation and Arnot 
Corning and Bath to hold free flu shots in our libraries.  Steele, Horseheads and VanEtten were 
chose to host this event.  District-wide Halloween events include the Teen Night Circus on Friday 
October 24th (Ages 12-18) and the second annual Spooky Stacks for kids being held on 
Wednesday, October 29th.  Both events are being held at the Steele Library. An upcoming 
“Astronomy for Everyone” program at the Big Flats Library is being sponsored with a check from 
the Friends of CCLD in the amount of $450.   
 

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the board 
(Document #2014-58). President Roberts stated that CCLD has received the breakdown of the $149,620 
check from STLS - $88,276 for the Central Library Development funds and $61,344 in Central Book Aid.  
He also stated that the Committee reviewed the meeting dates for 2015 – changes will be made and the 
list will be submitted to the full board next month.  The Library District has been notified that the Fiori 
Worker’s Compensation case has been settled with the family – no civil suits can be filed in this case.  It 
is expected that this settlement means that the Library District Worker’s Compensation rates will begin to 
decrease.  
 
Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was distributed 
in writing to the board (Document #2014-59). Ms. Cook stated that the Insured Cash Sweep account that 
replaces the former CDARs accounts has been opened. The bank will send CLCD monthly statements. 
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee meeting was 
distributed in writing to the board (Document #2014-60). Mr. Hare stated that the Committee approved 
the RFPs (Requests for Proposals) for the Project Management of the NYS Construction project – 
Elevator replacement at the Steele Library.  Proposals are expected to be received by November 1st and 
the Committee will review them at their November meeting and submit their recommendation to the full 
board. The Committee approved the final payments to contractors for the Horseheads Interior Renovation 
project.  The project was finished under budget and completely paid for by the Public Library Foundation 
of Chemung County (Horseheads Foundation).  It was stated for the record that Sue Oliver, the Project 
Manager and Owen Frank, the Horseheads Library Supervisor did an excellent job on this project. 
The parking lot paving project is complete.  The parking area picked up additional spaced due to the 9ft. 
spacing.  
 
An Open House for the Grand Reopening of the Horseheads Free Library was held on October 15th.  Mr. 
Shaw met with Joanne Paulison, current President of the Friends of the Horseheads Library to discuss 
greater cooperation between both Friends groups, the CCLD board and staff.  
 
The Committee reviewed a request for payment form Foor & Associates in the amount of $4,280 for 
which there are questions regarding what the charges are for.  The Committee asked Director Ron Shaw 
to send a letter to Foor & Associates for a full explanation of the charges. Regarding the mold remediation 
at the Steele Library, an ultra violet light has been purchased and will be installed by the County 
Buildings & Grounds Department.  CONSENT ITEM: The Library District also received a change order 
from Kimble, Inc. to clean the mold from the interior of the air handling unit at a cost of $1,464.80.  Mr. 
Hare moved, seconded by Ms. Cook to approve the change order from Kimble for the cleaning of the 
mold at a cost not to exceed $1,464.80. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Personnel Committee. Ms. Cady stated that the Committee has met with Director Ron Shaw and gave 
him the current version of his contract with the Library District for him to review.  The Committee has 
also met with the HR Consultant to go over the Director evaluation forms.  The Consultant will meet with 
the Director to go over the forms in order to tailor the questions to the library environment.  The 
Committee will then review the forms again prior to submission to the full board for approval.  



CONSENT ITEM. Board member reviewed the Personnel Committee Charter. The Charter includes the 
responsibilities of the Committee and the procedures to follow to fulfill those responsibilities.  Ms. Cady 
moved, seconded by Ms. Reynolds to approve the Personnel Committee Charter with noted changes 
(removing he and his) which will be in effect beginning immediately through December of 2015.  VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved.  
 
CONSENT ITEM. Ms. Cady moved, seconded by Ms. Dworkin that the Board of Trustees approves the 
list of personnel actions as submitted to the board in writing. Motion Unanimously Approved. A copy of 
this list will be included with the original of these minutes.  
 
 
Old Business.  Ms. Reynolds requested to know the status of the “technology plan” for the Library 
District.  Mr. Shaw stated that he has been in contact with Jim Brady – County IT Department – and 
information has been passed on to Deb Brimmer, CCLD’s Network Technology Specialist who will 
complete an evaluation of the system.  
 
Ms. Cady asked about the Marketing Plan for CCLD events.  A District-wide Publicity Manual is needed.   
 
New Business.  Ms. Silvernail asked about the necessary steps to stop the approximate 1,000 people in 
her district from paying both a CCLD library tax and if passed, a Corning Painted Post School District tax 
that supports the Corning Library.  It was stated that the Legislation that formed the district would need to 
be modified.  
 
Ms. Cady requested that the board establish a “Board Education Chair” that would be responsible for 
bringing education items to the board on a regular basis.  The appointment to this position would fulfill 
the Committee requirements of that board member.  Job duties and implementation of this position need 
to be discussed.  Ms. Cady stated that she will work on a proposal for this position.  This matter will be 
discussed further in the upcoming months.   
 
Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to make the following board statement:  “Thank you to 
the CCLD staff.  While the Director was out on medical leave, they carried on not only the daily work but 
programs continued, the Horseheads Library was cleared out and put back together and the Maker Faire 
was a great success.  We have a great group of people working at CCLD”.  VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved.  
 
Public Expression.  None.  
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:33pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, 
November 20th, 2014 at 6:00pm at the Horseheads Free Library, 405 South Main Street, Horseheads, 
New York.  
 























Document #2014-64 
 
Report of the November 5th, 2014 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
Attending the meeting were Richard Roberts, Georgia Reynolds, Marge Kappanadze; and 
Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD management.  The meeting opened at 6:00pm.   
 
President Roberts stated that the Library District budget for 2015 passed with 63% of the 
voters in favor of the budget amount. He also requested information from the Committee on 
the Strategic Planning Committee Charter he sent to members.  He is looking to form a 
committee and is looking to integrate Financial Planning into the Strategic Plan.  Many 
questions were raised including whether or not this is a position for a paid staff member. 
This person would be in charge of grant writing, fund raising, etc.  These issues will be 
addressed by the Committee before a final plan is brought to the full board.  
 
Mr. Shaw reported on the following: 
 

o The first draft of the Library District’s Technology Plan is finished.  Funding in the 
amount of $3,200 has been received from the Community Foundation and is set 
aside for Technology. 

o A donation of stocks has been secured that will bring between $10,000 and $30,000 
to the Library District.  The donation has been designated to use for non-fiction 
materials.  Once the funding has been received, CCLD will re-allocate other non-
fiction funds to Programming, AV and Technology.  
 

 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 11/5/14 for the General Fund in the 
amount of $38,443.56; Grant Fund - $11,629.83 and invoices submitted by the Building & 
Grounds Committee in the amount of $69,606.50. Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by Ms. 
Kappanadze to pay the bills as listed. Motion Carried.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:40pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, December 3rd, 2014 at 6pm in 
the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2014-66 
 
Report of the November 12th, 2014 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Sue Cook, Marge Kappanadze, Georgia 
Reynolds and community member Robin Fitzgerald.  Also attending were Joan Santulli and Ron 
Shaw, CCLD Administration.  The meeting opened at 8:00am. 
 
Ms. Santulli presented the October 31st, 2014 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report 
will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the 11/12/14 Unpaid Bills Detail for the General Fund bills totaling 
$31,640.97.  This list includes the 3rd Quarter Utilities payment to the Chemung County 
Treasurer. The Unpaid Bills Detail will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its 
consideration.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:17am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, December 10th, 2014 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the 
Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2014-66 
 
Report of the November 5th, 2014 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
A meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County Library District was held on 
Wednesday, October 1st, 2014.  The meeting opened at 5:03pm. Present were Mr. Hare, Ms. Hayes and Mr. 
Roberts. Mr. Muldoon was excused. Also attending was Ron Shaw, CCLD Management.  The meeting opened 
at 5:00pm.    
 
The Committee reviewed the RFPs(Request for Proposal) for Project Management of the New York State 
Construction Project - Elevator Replacement at the Steele Library.  Bids were received from AJH Design 
($15,200), Foor & Associates ($22,000) and Hunt ($9,000). Elmira Structures declined the bid opportunity. 
The Committee will make a recommendation to the full board at its November meeting pending input from 
Mr. Muldoon.  
 
Steele Library.  The committee reviewed the request for partial payment from Kimble, Inc. for the HVAC 
project in the amount of $46,930. The Masonry Restoration is near completion and is projected to be finished 
by November 10th. ld – a quote was received in the amount of $1,000.  For an approximate cost of $800, Mr. 
Morenus has recommended purchasing an ultra violet light that when installed in the problem area will 
eliminate there being future problems.  The County Buildings & Grounds crew would be asked to install the 
light. Mr. Frank stated that there is grant funds left to be used for these unexpected expenditures. 
 
West Elmira/Big Flats Libraries.  The paperwork to close out these projects has been sent in to New York 
State. We have received the final 10% of the project funding and the projects are completely closed.. 
 
Horseheads Library. The Paving Project at the Horseheads Library is complete. The committee reviewed the 
request for partial payment for the Horseheads parking lot in the amount of $22,676.50.   
 
Mr. Hare presented the initial draft of the Buildings & Grounds charter. Discussion indicated the desire to 
revise the charges; revise the format; and to include development of a long-range capital improvements plan 
and a long-range budget projection.  
  
Mr. Shaw informed the committee that the energy audit is pending at the NYSERDA Legal Department. He 
expects to receive approval within 30 days.   
 
Mr. Hare requested updated quotes from F.A.S.T. for the alarm systems at West, Big Flats and Horseheads.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:41pm.  
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, December 3rd, 
2014 at 5pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 



Adopted by the Chemung County Library District on ___________________. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE CHARTER 

CCLD 

Article I.  Charge to the Committee. 

The Executive Committee is hereby created and charged by the Board of Trustees 

of the Chemung County Library District to perform the functions of the 

Board of Trustees in the management of the affairs of the District during 

the intervals between meetings of the Board.  This includes, but is not 

limited to, the following: 

 Set the Agenda for the month’s Board meeting 

 Authorize payment of bills 

 Keep Board and its officers appraised of developments within the library 

Article II.  Term. 

This Charter is effective from the date approved by the Board through December 

31, 2015 and is subject to amendment or revocation by the Board.  The Charter 

shall be renewed each year in January.   

Article III.  Membership. 

The members of the Committee shall include the officers of the Board (President, 

Vice-President, Treasurer and Secretary) as well as the most recent past President 

currently serving on the Board (if any).  The President shall act as chair.   

Resignation.  All Board officers are required to be members.  Officers may resign 

their post at any time by communicating such resignation to the Board President 

and the Board.  They will automatically be removed from membership in the 

Executive Committee.   

Article IV.  Powers. 

Scope of Powers.  The Committee shall have the power to authorize the payment 

of bills on behalf of the Board at large.  The Committee shall have no power to 

commit the District to any course of action.  The Committee shall be subject to all 

Policies and Regulations of the District and to applicable law.  The Committee 

may make recommendations to the Board of Trustees as appropriate, to take 

actions for the benefit of the District. 



Adopted by the Chemung County Library District on ___________________. 

Meetings.  Meetings of the Committee shall be scheduled, posted, and conducted 

as required by the Open Meetings Law.  Chair should consult with District 

administration for advice and assistance. 

Decisions.  The Committee should, in the first instance, attempt to make decisions 

by consensus.  If consensus cannot be reached, the Committee can make decisions 

by majority vote.  No decision or recommendation shall be recognized as an act of 

the Committee without agreement of a majority of the membership. 

Information.  The Committee may request of the District administration any 

information the Committee believes is necessary to conduct its work, but the 

administration shall not disclose any information otherwise kept confidential by 

the policies of the District or by applicable law without specific authorization of, 

and subject to any terms imposed by, the Board of Trustees. 

 

Article VI.  Obligations. 

The Committee shall set the agenda for the monthly Board meetings.  The 

President shall solicit the Board regarding items they wish to be added to the 

agenda.   

The Committee shall meet monthly to approve pending bills in between the Board 

meetings.  All bills must subsequently be approved by the Board as a whole. 

 


	Agenda+2014-11
	BUILDINGS+AND+GROUNDS+COMMITTEE+CHARTER+(3)
	Document+2014-61
	Document+2014-62
	Document+2014-63
	Document+2014-64
	Document+2014-65
	Document+2014-66
	Executive+Committee+charter

